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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
AIL Dixon Technologies Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of AIL Dixon Technologies Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March, 2024, and the statement of Profit and
Loss including other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“the ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises of the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. These reports are expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and shall comply with the
levant applicable requirement of SA 720 (Revised), ‘The Auditor's Responsibilities Relating to Other
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Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsibile for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, total comprehensive inceme, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility aiso includes
maintenance of adequate accounting recerds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irreguiarities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but fo do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ {dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence thatis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3}(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Cempany has adequate internal financial controls system
with reference fo financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reascnableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue
as a going concern.




o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controf that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1. As required by the Companies {(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {"the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable that:

(a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

(h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
{('Ind AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended; in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company being a private
company, Section 197 of the Act related to the managerial remuneration not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 31 {d) to the financial statements,

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses — Refer Note 31 (e) to the financial statements;




ii.

vi.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company - Refer Note 31 (¢} to the financial statements.

. (&) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any
material misstatement.

The Company has not paid or declared any dividend during the year and has not proposed
final dividend for the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended is applicable
for the Company only w.e.f. 1 April 2023, therefore, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on preservation of audit traif as
per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for financial year ended
31 March 2024

For S.N. Dhawan & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain

Partner

UDIN: 24087701BKDAPD

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024




Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of the
independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of AlL. DIXON TECHNCLOGIES PRIVATE
LIMITED on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(i)

(ii)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(@)

In respect of property, plant and equipment and other intangible asseis

(A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant detail
of right of use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, the provision of
clause 3 (i}(a)(B) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has a program of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment under
which property, plant and equipment and right to use assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this program, certain Property,
Plant and Equipment were verified during the year and according to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us,
the Company does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Company).

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including Right of Use
assets) during the year being under cost model.

There are no proceedings which have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The Management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year, except for goods-in-transit. In the case of goods-in-transit, these goods have
been received subsequent to the year-end. According, to the information and explanations
given to us and based on the audit procedures performed by us, we are of the opinion that the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate, having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more
in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on physical verification as compared
with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits (non-fund based) in excess of Rs. & crores, in aggregate,
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. However, According to explanation given
to us the Company is not required to submit the quarterly returns or statements..

(iil) According to the information and expfanations given to us, the Company has not made
investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iif)(a) to (f) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
e ransaction covered under Sections 185 and 1886 of the Act.



(v} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has neither accepted any
deposits nor the amounts which are deemed to be deposit during the year and further the Company
had no unclaimed deposits at the beginning of the year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Hence reporting
under clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi} The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company’s products/ services. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in respect of
Company’s products/services and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained by the Company. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
complete.

(vii)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, have generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities though
there has been slight delay in deposit of custom duty. Further, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. The operations of the Company, during
the year do not give rise to liabilities of sales tax, service tax, duty of excise and value
added tax.

(b) Detail of statutory dues referred to in clause (@) above, which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities as at 31 March, 2024 on account of disputes are given

below:.

Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum

the statute the dues {Rs./ pald under which the where

Lakhs) protest amount dispute is

{Rs./ relates pending
Lakhs)

Goods and Goods and 3325.45 12.96 2017-18 High Court,

Services Service Tax 2018-19 Amravati

Tax Act 2019-20

2017

(viil) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions relating to
previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix)

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during
the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has not
been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any

government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans
availed by the Company were applied for the purposes for which the loans were obtained.




{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that
funds raised on short-term basis (Excluding current maturities of long-term borrowings)
have not been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly the
provisions of clause 3({ix){ &) of the Order are not applicable.

(h The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, accordingly the
provisions of clause 3{{ix){f) of the Order are not applicable.

(x)
{(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally}. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3 (x)(b) of the order are not applicable.
{xi)
{a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the period covered by our audit.

{b} No report under sub-section {12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{xii)(a)-(c) of the
Order are not applicable.

(xiiiy In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the
requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the
applicable accounting standards. Since, the Company is a private limited Company, therefore,
the provision of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)

{a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

{b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued to the Company till date, covering the
period under audit,

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors, hence provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable.
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{xvi)
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xvi) {a) of the order are not applicable.

(by The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without a valid Cerlificate of Registration from the Reserve bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (“CIC") as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order are not
applicable.

{d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the current financial year. and during the
immediately preceding financial year

{xviily There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

{(xx) .

(a) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Act in
compliance with the second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act.

(b}  There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) on ongeing
projects requiring a transfer to a special account in compliance with provision of sub-section
(6) of Section 135 of the said Act




(xxi) 1n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does
not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xxi} of
the Order are not applicable.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Vinesh Jain
Partner
iMembership No.: 087701
UDIN : 24087701BKDAPD2775

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024




Annexure B to the independent Auditor's Report of even date on the financial statements of AlL
DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of AlL Dixon Technologies Private Limited of even date)

Independent Auditor’s report on the Interna! Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”)

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of AIL DIXON
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED {“the Company”) as at 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

2. The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s
business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI")
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal Financial Controls and, both issued
by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

6. A Company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

/WJ,J;; accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
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includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of Management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of coliusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8

. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controi
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the iInstitute of Chartered Accountants of India

For S.N. Dhawan & COLLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration No.: C00050N/N500045
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Vinesh Jain “{ Gurugram N

Partner
Membership No.: 087701
UDIN: 24087701BKDAPD2775

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May 2024



AIL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32309UP2017PTC090189

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

Assets

1 Non-current assets !
a. Property, plant and equipment
b. Capital work-in-progress
c. Right -of-use asset
d. Financial assets

i. Otherfinancial assets

e. Other non-current assets

2 Current assets

a. Inventories

b. Financial assets
i. Trade receivables
ii. Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Other bank balance
iv. Other financial assets

c. Current tax assets (net)

d. Other current assets

Total assets
Equity and liabilities

1 Equity
a. Equity share capital
b. Other equity
Total equity

2 Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Lease liabilities
b. Provisions
c. Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Lease liabilities
iii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises
-Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and
small enterprises
iv. Other current financial liabilities
b. Other current liabilities
c. Provisions

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements
In terms of our report atlached
For S. N. Dhawan & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 000050N/N500045

\pf“%&
Inesh Jain

Partner
Membership No, 087701

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May, 2024

As at As at
Note No. 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.Jlakh Rs.lakh
3.1 9,525.88 4,938.85
3.2 109.65 2,643.14
33 1,059.08 1,103.63
4 159.26 69.73
5 46.39 128.08
10,900.26 8,883.43
6 18,840.23 22,006.68
7 6,021.42 29,085.96
8 8,361.96 259.17
8 . 404.41
4 17,780.02 78.29
9 132.78 163.25
5 2,282.12 1,103.31
53,418.53 53,101.07
64,318.79 61,984.50
10 1,900.00 1,900.00
11 551479 4,660.13
7,414.79 6,560.13
12 334.75 669.49
13 1,290.36 1,288.14
15 35.56 19.32
14 383.53 296.97
2,044.20 2,273.92
12 1,869.49 334,75
13 4.79 2.97
16

250.52 80.48
51,783.82 51,859.89
17 896.22 836.59
18 53.33 28.45
15 1.63 7.32
54,859.80 53,150.45
56,904.00 55,424.37
64,318.79 61,984.60

Sunil Vachanl
Director
DIN:00025431

(N

A

Sumit Mehta
Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: 14 May, 2024

of the Board of Directors

ies Private Limited

f .
A
Jeetendra Trikha

Director
DIN:07731140



AIL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32303UP2017PTC090189
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

1]

vil

vl

Revenue from operations
Other Income
Total income

Expenses
Cosl of materials consumed

Changes in inventory of work-in-progress and finished goods
Labour charges

Employee benefils expense

Finance cosls

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (Ill}

Profit before tax (-}

Tax expense

Current lax

Deferred tax charge/(credit)

Taxes for earfier years

Profit for the year (IV-V)

Other comprehensive income

Iterns thal will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the defined benefit Eability
Income lax relating to above

Total other Comprehensive income / (expense)

Total comprehensive income for the year (VI+VIl)

Eaming per equity share
Equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each

Basic (Rs. Per share)
Diluted (Rs. Per share)

See accompanying noles forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report atlached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain
Pariner
Membership No. 087701

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May, 2024

Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh
19 1,26,525.15 98,458.07
20 16.77 29.82
1,26,541.92 98,487.89
21 1,17,961.15 92,033.66
22 (345.76) (175.98)
2,890.32 1,676.69
23 1,709.37 881.91
24 350.46 156.70
25 706.10 361.51
26 1,855.18 1,081.66
1,25,126.82 96,016.15
1,415.10 2,471.74
27 270.77 629.23
14 87.97 (54.91)
197.51 &
556.25 574,32
858.85 1,897.42
(5.60) 3.59
1.41 (0.90)
(4.19) 2.69
854,66 1,900.11
28
452 9.99
4.52 9.99

For, on behd]f of the Board of Directors

Sunil Vachani
Direclor
DIN:00025431

Y
. \‘\t‘*/
AT
Sumit Mehta
Company Secrelary

Place: Noida
Date: 14 May, 2024

ies Private Limited

s

4
Jeetendra Trikha

Director
DIN:07731140



AIL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32309UP2017PTC090189
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.flakh Rs.lakh
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,415.10 2,471.74
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 706.10 361.51
Interest expense 350.46 156.70
Interestincome (9.37) (27.37)
2,462.29 2,962.58
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase} / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories 3,166.45 (1.643.15)
Trade receivables 23,064.54 2,854,76
Other current assets {1,178.81) 213.02
Other current financial assels (17,701.73) 45.12
Other non-current financial assets (89.53) (5.75)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 93.97 (1,550.04)
Other current financial iabdties (167.46) 167.46
Other current Eabilities 2488 11.00
Provisions 4.95 10.09
Cash generated from f{used in) operating activities 9,679.55 3,065.09
Income taxes paid (net) (437.81) (878.66)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 9,241.74 2,186.43
. Cash flow from investing activities
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment, includng capital advances (2512.73) (3.418.70)
Sale of property plant and equipment 2381 -
Increase in other bank balances 404.41 (404.41)
Dividend paid - (570.00)
Interest received on deposits 9.37 27.37
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (2,075.14) (4,365.74)
. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (including interest on lease kabites) (133.09) (21.24)
Proceeds from short term borrawings (net) 1,200.00 -
Repayment of lease kabiities (130.72) (130.72)
Repayment of term loan and vehicle loan =
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 936.19 (152.66)
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 8,102.79 {2,331.97)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 259.17 2,591.14
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 8,361.96 25917

1} The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set outin Ind AS 7 on statements of cash flow.

2) Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow.

3) Figures for the previous year have been regrouped wherever considered necessary.

4) Current taxes paid are treated as arising from operating activities and are not bifurcated between investing and financing actvities.

5) Changes in kability arising from financing activibes:

Pariedtars 01 April 2023 . AINFIows 31 March 2024
Receipts Payments
Current Borrowings - 1,200.00 - 1,200.00
Non-current Borrowings (indluding current maturities of long term borrowings) - - - =
- 1,200.00 - 1.200.00
Particulars 01 April 2022 CashFlows 31 March 2023
Receipts Payments

Current Borrowings
Non-current Borrowings {induding current maturites of long temm borrowings)

See accompanying notes forming parl of the fnancial statements

In terms of our report attached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reg#stgab‘on Ho. 000050N/N500045

e

ies Private Limited

\ of the Board of Directors

r
4
ielendra Trikha

sh Jain Sunil Vachani
Partner Director Director
DIN.00025431 DIN.O7731140

Membership No. 087701

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May, 2024

w
J"”\'. &

Sumit Mehta
Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: 14 May, 2024



AIL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U32309UP2017PTC090189

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

A.  Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Equity Shares

Balance as at 1st April, 2022

Issue of equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Issue of equity share capital

Balance as at 31 March, 2024

B.  Other equity

Balance as at 1st April, 2022

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Final dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2021-22
Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax
Balance as at 31 March, 2024

No. of shares Rs./lakh
1,90,00,000 1,800.00
1,90,00,000 1,900.00
1,90,00,000 1,900.00
Items of
General Retained other
< Total
Reserve earnings comprehensive
income
RsJlakh Rs./lakh Rs.flakh Rs./lakh
- 3,323.67 6.35 3,330.02
- 1,897.42 - 1,897.42
- - 2.69 269
= (570.00) - (570.00)
- 4,651.09 9.04 4,660.13
- 858.85 - 858.85
R & (4.19) (4.19)
- 5,509.94 4.85 5,514.79

There is no change in Equity share capital and other equity due to prior period errors.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No, 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain

Partner
Membership No. 087701

Place: Gurugram
Date: 14 May, 2024

For and on bghalf of the Board of Directors

ixon Technologies Private Limited

Sunil Vachani
Director
DIN:00025431

v WA
/g"‘wv /
Sumit Mehta
Company Secretary

Place: Noida
Date: 14 May, 2024

Lol llys

Jeetendra Trikha

Director
DIN:07731140



AL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32303UP2017PTC090189
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

Corporate Information

AL Dixon Technologies Private Limited (‘tlhe Company') was incorporated on 8 February, 2017 in India and is a Joint Venture between
Aditya Infotech Limited and Dixon Technologies {India) Limited. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and sales of all kind of
security systems and its peripherals including spares part and accessories.

The company is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Cempanies Act applicable in india. The
registered office of the Company is located at B-14 & 15, Phase-l, Noida, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Uttar Pradesh, India- 201305,
The Company's CIN - U32309UP2017PTC0O90189.

The board of directors of the Company approved the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 and authorised for issue on 14
May, 2024

Statement of compliance and going concern assumptions

"These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time as nolified under section 133 of Companies Act,
2013, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act’} The accounting policies have been consistently applied for alt the
pericds presented in the financial stalements except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an
existing accounling standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basls of preparation of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for

- Centain financial assels and liabilities at fair value (refer to accounling policy regarding financial instruments),
-Employee’s defined benefit plan measured as per actuarial valuation

All assets and kabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per Company's normal operating cycle. Based on nature of
operations, the Company has censidered an operating cycle of 12 months.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is the functional currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest lakhs (Rs.flLakh), excep! when otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial slatements in conformity wath the recognition and measurement principles of ind AS requires the management
of the Company to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the periods presented. These
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions based on the latest available reliable information.

Eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recoegnised in the period in
which the eslimates are revised, and fulure periods are affected.

The Company uses lhe following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparation of its financial slatemants:
-Determination of useful life of property, plant and equipmen! and intangible assets

- Loss allowance for expected credit losses

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations — Key actuarial assumptions

- Recognilion and measurement of provisions and centingencies

- The net realisable value of an item of inventory

- Lease term regarding exercise of extension options

- Recogniticn of deferred tax assets / liabilities




AlL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32309UP2017PTCO80189
NOTES 7O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Material Accounting Policy infermation
2.1 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is slated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment lesses, if any,
Cost of acquisition or construction of property, plant and equipment comprises #s purchase price including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts, rebates and any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working
condition for its intended use

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that fulure economic benefils associated with the item wili fliow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capilal work-in-
progress’. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheel date is classified
as capital advances under "Gther Non-Current Assels’.

Depreciation and useful life

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off tha cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) fess their
residual values over their useful lives, using straight-ine method as per the usefu! life as mentioned in Schedule 1l to the Companies
Act, 2013 excepl in respect of following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based
on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the assel, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc

Asset Useful tife
Factory buildings 10 years
Plant and machinery 15 years

Dies and moulds 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Electrical Installations 10 years

Office equipment 5 years
Computers and computer servers 3 to 6 years
Vehicles 8 years
Leasehold tand 99 years

The Company conducts an annual review of the residual value, useful lives, and depreciation method of its assets. H there are
differences between the current expectalions and previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a prospective change in
accounting estimate,

Major overbaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit derived from lhe overhaul. If the next overhaul is
undertaken earfier than the previously estimated life of the economic benefit, the carrying amount of the remaining previous overhaul
cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

if an assel's carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is immediately written down to its
recoverable amount.

Derecognition

Company derecognizes properly, plant and equipment when it is disposed off or when there are no future economic benefils expecled
from its continued use. The gain or loss resulting fram the disposal or retirement of a property, plant, and equipment item is calculated
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset. This gain or {oss is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Capital Work in Progress:

Capital work-in-progress is recorded at its cost, which encompasses expenses incurred dusing the construction period. This cost also
includes interest on the amount borrowed for the acquisition of qualifying assels and olher expenses related to project
implemeniation, to the extent that these expenses pertain to the period before the commencement of commercial production.




AlL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
GiN - U32309UP2017PTC090189
NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2

23

24

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting year, the Company assesses whether there are any indications of impairment for its property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets. If there is any indication, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset to
determine the extent of impairment loss, if any. i it's not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Corporate assets are
allocated to individual cash-generaling units if a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

intangible assets wilh indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, as well as when there is an indication of impairment. The recoverable amount is determined based on the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is assessed by discounting the estimated future cash flows 1o their present
value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects market assessments of the lime value of money and asset-specific risks.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amoeunt is reduced
to the recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the fower of the cost (net of eligible input tax credits) and net realisatle value (except waste and scrap
which are valued at estimated nel realisable value).

a. Raw materials, stores and spare parts, and packing materials are considered to be realisable at cost, if the finished products, in
which they will be used, are expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost is computed on using ‘First in First Ouat' method
{'FIFO". Cost includes expenditure incurred for acquiring inventories like purchase price, import duties, laxes (net of tax credit)
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Cosl of b. Finished goods and work in progress : Cost-includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of finished goods and work-in-progress is compied on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less eslimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers Is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expecls
to be entitled in exchange for those goads or services.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable
consideration) alocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of
variable consideration on account of discounts or incentives offered by the Company as part of the contract. This variable
consideration is estimated based on the expected value of oulflow. Revenue (net of variable consideration) is recognised only to
the extent that it is highly probable that the amount will not be subject to significant reversal when uncerfainty relating to its
recognition is resolved.

Sale of products:

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised when the contre of the goods has been {ransferred to the customer. The
performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the customer or
on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

Sale of service
Revenue from rendering services is recognised over time in the accounting pericd in which the services are rendered and the
Company has an enforceable right to payment for services.




AlL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN - U32309UP2017PTC090189
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at the inception of the contract. A conteact is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whelher:

+4he contract invelves the use of identified asset;
-the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the perod of lease and;
-lhe Company has the right o direct the use of lhe asset.

i. Right-of-use assets

Company recegnises right-of-use assels at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of iease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of fease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
eslimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Sheds 30 years

The right-of-use assets are alsc subject to impairment.
ii.Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the {ease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amountis expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The |ease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company
and payments of penalties for terminating lhe lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calcutating the present value of lease paymenis, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. n addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such fease payments) or a change in the assessment of an oplion to puschase
the underlying asset.

iil.Short-term leases and leases of [ow-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemplion to its short-term leases of building and machinery and
eguipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). it also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of building and machinery and
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on shorl-term leases and leases of lovevalue assels are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

}



Al DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32309UP2017PTC0G80189
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.6

Income faxes

The income tax expense or credit for the peried is the lax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabifities aftributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current tax

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year. The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax labilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that faxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to atlow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecegnised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to lhe extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow Lhe deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assels and labilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is seltled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred {ax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised oirside profit or loss {either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred fax assels and liabifities are offset when there is a legalty enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and when the deferred tax balances relate fo the same axation authority. Current {ax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the enlity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to selite on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setlle
the liability simultaneously.




AlL. DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U32308UP2017PTC080189
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.7 Provisions and contingent liabifities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis
probable that the Company will be required to setile the cbligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obfigation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideraticn required to setile the present cbligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of Lhe time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fulure cash flows
to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriale, lhe risks specific to the Hability.

A present obligaticn that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an cutflow of rescurces wifl be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent fiability. Contingent liabilities are
alsc disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the cceurrence o non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the Company.

Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settiement is remote, are not disclosed as
confingent liabilities.

Contingent assets

Contingent asse!s are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may
not be realised. Howaever, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related assel is not a contingent asset
and is recognised.




All. DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
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2.8 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include salaries, wages, contribution to provident fund, gratuily, leave encashmen! towards un-availed
{eave, compensated absences and other terminal benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as wages, salaries, bonus, ex-grafia, short-term compensated absences, performance linked
rewards, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be setfled within 12 months are classified as short-term
employee benefits and are recognised in the period in which the employee renders services and are measured ai the
amounis expected to be paid when the liabitities are settled.

Defined contribution plan

Contribution payable to the recognised provident fund, employee state insurance, employee pension scheme and other
employee social security scheme etfc., which are substantially defined contribution plans, is recognised as expense based cn
the undiscounted amount of obligations of the Company 1o contrbute to the plan.

Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plans comprising of graluity and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value of
defined benefit obligations which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried
“out at the end of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of

assels as permitted.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost
is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarizl assumplicns are
recognised in the pericd in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income,

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefit comprises of leave encashment towards unavailed leave and compensated absences,
which is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each
annual reporling period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cos! of assets as permitied.

Termination benefits:

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee accepts voluntary retirement scheme in exchange for these benefits. Expenditure on Voluntary
Retirement Scheme {VRS} is charged to the Statement of Profit and L.oss when incurred.
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2.9

2.10

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item
of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing aclivities of the Company are segregated.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is compuled by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average number of equity shares
cutstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for
treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse share split
{consolidation of shares}.

Ciluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after {ax after considering the effect of interest and other
financing costs or income (net of atiributable taxes) associated with difutive potential equity shares by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares including the treasury shares held
by the Company to satisfy the exercise of the share options by the employees.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-ferm deposils with an
original maturity of three months or less and deposits which are subject o insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2.12 Financial Instruments

initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
[nitial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCH, and fair value through profil or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not conlain a significant financing component or for which the Company has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the ransaclion price

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and interest {SPPIY on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPP are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model,

The Company's business maodel for managing financial assets refers fo how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assels, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect confractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value (hrough OCI are held within a business model with the abjective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and sefling.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, Enancial assets are classified in four categories:

» Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments}

» Financia! assetls at fair value through OCl with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

* Financial assets designated at fair value through OC1 with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

+ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cos! are subsequently measured using the effective interest {EIR} method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or foss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

The Company's financial assets al amorlised cost include trade receivables, loan to subsidiary, jeint ventures, and
associates, and loans to employees,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels al fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or foss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through OCL Dividends on listed equity investments are reccgnised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivalive if! the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host, a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would mest the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is nol measured at fair value Lhrough profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
coniract that significantly modifies the cash flows thal would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised {i.e., removed from lhe Company's statement of financial pesition) when:

« The rights tc receive cash flows from the asset have expired; Or
» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third parly under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either

a. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially alt the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash Aows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has refained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor lransferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
refiects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be reguired to repay.

tmpairment

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held af fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects o receive, discounted al an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateraf held or other credit
enhancements that are integrai to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss alowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of lhe exposure,
irrespective of the tliming of the default {a lifetime ECL).

For tlrade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting dale.

For debt instruments al fair value through OC{, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification. At every reporting
date, the Company evaluates whether (he debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all reasonabfe and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or efforl. In making that evaluation, the Company reassesses the
risk of the debt instruments. In addition, the Company considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days pasi due.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset {o be in default when internal or externat information indicates that
the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is wrilten off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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ii, Financiat liabilites

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measuremeant
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial Kabilifies are classified in two categories:

+ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
+ Financial Habilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
Financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial labilities
designated upon initiad recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes desivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by accounting standards. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on labilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss

Financial liabilittes designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recegnition, and only if the criteria in accounting standards are satisfied.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings and instruments are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process,

; Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and fees or costs that are an

E integral part of lhe EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

:

g This category generally applies to interest-bearing borrowings and instruments,

: Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under lhe liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liabifity is replaced by another from the same lender en substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing lability are substanlially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original

liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

iii. Off setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amcunt is reported in the financial stalement of financiat
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, {o realise the assets and setlle the Habilities simultaneously.
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iv. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivalive financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and inlerest rate swaps, to hedge its
foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value cn the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequenlly remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

* Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure fo changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or fiability or an
unrecognised firm commitment

*» Cash flow hedges when hedging the expgosure to variabilily in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk
associated with a recognised asset or lability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the forefgn currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

+ Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
it wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged
and how the Company will assess whether the hedoing relationship meets the hedge effecliveness requirements (including
the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined}).

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if it meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

+ There is ‘an ecenomic relationship’ between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

* The effect of credit risk does not 'dominate the value changes' that result from that economic refationship.

* The hedge ratio of the hedging refationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the
Company aciually hedges and the guantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually uses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item

Hedges lhat meat all the gualifying criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of profit or loss as other expense. The
change in the fair value of the hedged Hem attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as pant of the carrying value of the
hedged item and is also recognised in the statemant of profit or loss as other expanse.

For fair value hedges relating lo items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to carrying value is amoertised through profit
or loss over the remaining term of the hedge using the EIR method. The EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributabfe to
the risk being hedged.

if the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in profil or loss.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value
of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with & correspending gain or loss
recognised in profit or foss.

v Interest income

a. Interest income from a financial asset is recegnised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

2,13 Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} natifies new slandards or amendments te the existing standards under Companies (indfan

Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from lime to time. For the year ended 31 March, 2024, MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendmenis to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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2.14 Significant Judgements and Key sources of Estimation in applying Accounting Policles

Information about significant judgments and key sources of estimation made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

a.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an
assessment of the probability of the Company's fulure taxable income against which the deferred tfax assets can be
utilized. in addition, significant judgment is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets (langible and intangible): Management reviews ils estimate of the useful
lives of depreciablefamortizable assels at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate 10 aciual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and equipment.

Classification of Leases: The Company enters info leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but
not limited to, {ransfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option o purchase and estimated
certainty of exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of
minimum lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased assel.

Employee benefit: Employee benefit obligations are measured con the basis of actuarial assumptions which include
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumplions concerning future developmends in discount rates, medical cost
frends, anticipation of fulure salary increases, and the inflation rate. The Company considers that Lhe assumptions used
to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on
the resulting calculations.

Provisions and Contingencies: The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been
made in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent
Assels’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgment by management regarding the
probability of exposure to potential ioss.

Impairment of financial assels: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication of impairment. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs. ! Lakh Rs. / Lakh
3.2 Capital Work in progress
a. Capital work-in-progress 109.85 2,643.14
109.65 2,643.14
Notes:
. Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1-2years 2-3years More then 3
1 year years
Projects in progress 109.65 - - - 109.65
Projects temporarity suspended “ - - -
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1-2years 2-3years More then 3
1 year years
Projects in progress 2,643.14 - - - 2,643.14

Projects temporarily suspended

ii. There is no capital-work-progress , whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

iii. See note 31 for disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

2] Gu?ugram
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3,3 Right-of-use assets

i Balance as at 1 April, 2022
Addgons duting the year
Depreciation during the year

Balance as at 31 March, 2023

Add#ions during lhe year

Depredciation during the year
Balance as at 31 March, 2024

. Hovement in lease Babilities during the yeas:

=

Balance at the Beginning of lhe year
Finance cost accrued during the year
Paymend of lease bab@ties

Balance &l the end

Current
Non-Current

=

Maturity anatysis of kease Jiabifities:

The lable below provides detads regarding the maturities of lease kabddies on discounted bass:

Before 3 months
25 months
8-12 months

1-3 yeasrs

35 years
Above 5 years

#v. The lable below provides delaZs regarding the cash outfiow of fease Eabdties on contractual basis are as folows:
Before 3 months
36 months
812 months
£-3years
3-5years
Above & yzars

v. Other disclosures

Interest on lease Eabdties (see note 24)

Depreciztion on nght of use assels (see role 25)

Eapenses relating to short-term and Jow value keases (see note 26)
Repayment of lease Fab¥tes

Additions to right-of-use assels

The carndng amound of right-of-use assels

Factory Buitding Total
fisfakh Rs.Aakh
1.14B.18 1,143.18
4455 44.55
1,103,863 1,103,63
44.55 44.55
1,059.08 1,059.08

3 March, 2024

31 March, 2023

Rs.Aakh RsAakh
128114 1,287.07
134.76 §34.76
(130.72) 130.72)
1,295.15 1,291,114
479 2.97
128036 1.288.14
1,285.15 1,281,141
120 0.74
120 0.74
239 149
1154 14.67
2215 9.92
1,257.67 +,263.35
1,295,185 $,281.11
3450 34632
KER ] 3463
6%.80 69.25
27e. 278.21
287.93 282.1%
2971571 3,124.18
3682.51 382100
Year ended Year ended
31 Maech, 2024 31 March 2023
Rs.Aakh RsAakh
134,76 134.76
44.55 44.55
522 £5.10
{530.72) {130.72)
1,059.08 1.163.63

vi. The Company does not lace a significant Fquidity risk with regard 1o #s kzase Eab®lies as the crrend assels are sufiicient fo meel the obbg ations felated todease.

inlerest rate of incremental borrowing rate used for the measwement of lease BabZties is 10.5%,

=

K

vii, Rentat expense tecorded for shor-term and Eow value kases is Rs. 522 lakhs fos the year ended March 31, 2024 { Rs, 15.10 takhs for the year ended Klarch 31, 2023), the same have beéen racorded

under the head ‘Other expenses’ in the fnancial stalements.

ix, Rental income on assels given on sub-lease is Rs. Nl forf the year ended 31 March, 2024, {Rs. Mil for the year ended 31 March, 2023}
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As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.fiakh
4 Other financial asset
L. Non-current
a.  Security deposits 146.30 69.73
b,  Amount paid under protest to government authorities (see note 31}
12.96 ~
159.26 69.73
H, Current
a. Incentive from Andhra Pradesh Government 78.29 78.29
{see note no 36)
b. Marked to Market (MTM} on forward and option contracts 2.29 -
¢. Insurance and other claim recoverable (see note 40) 17,699.44 -
17,780.02 78.29
5 Other assets
I.  Non-current
a. Capital advances 46,39 128.08
: 46.39 128.08
il. Current
a. Balances with government authorities 1,984.35 980.48
{includes goods and service tax , and advance custom duty)
b. Prepaid expenses 36.94 21.73
¢. Advances lo employees 0.68 0.68
d. Advances to suppliers 260.15 100.42
2,282.12 1,103.31
6 Inventories
{Lower of cost and net realisable valug)
a. Raw materials (see note below) 15,897.66 19,409.86
b. Work in progress 2,491.26 1.616.99
c¢. Finished goods 451.31 979.83
18,840.23 22,006.68

Notes:

i. Raw materials includes raw material in transit Rs. 5,221.05 lakh (As al 31
March, 2023 Rs. 13,568.29 lakh }
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As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh
7 Trade receivables
a. Trade receivables from relaled parties {see note 35) 4,139.76 28,269.63
b. Trade receivabtles-others 1,881.66 816.33
Total trade recelvables 6,021.42 29,085.96
Trade recelvables
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 8,021.42 28,085.96
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
6,021.42 29,085.96
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good - -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase In credil risk - N
Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -
Total trade recelvables §,021.42 29,085,96
Ageing for trade recelvables - billed - current outstanding as at March 31, 2024 Is as follows:
Current buf not Outstanding for the followlng periods from due dafe of payment
due Less than 6 & months - 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
months year 3 years
Rs.flakh Rs./takh Rs.flakh Rs.lakh Rs flakh Rs.flakh
Undisputed Trade Recelvables
- considered good 4,219.91 1,790.88 - 10.63 - - 6,021.42
-which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - .
— credit impaired . . . - . - -
Disputed Trade receivables
- considered good - - . - - - -
~which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
— credit impaired - - - - N - -
4219.91 1,790.88 : 10.63 - - 6,021.42
Ageing for trade recelvables - billed — current outstanding as at March 31, 2023 Is as follows:
Current but not Qutstanding for the followlng perieds from due date of payment
due Less than 6 8 months -1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total
months year 3 years
Rs.Jlakh Rs.flakh Rs./fakh Rs.flakh Rs.ffakh Rs.llakh
Undisputed Trade Receivabtes
- considered good 9,881.04 18,258.80 946.12 B - - 29,085.95
—which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
= gredil impaired - - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - - . - - - -
— considered good - - - - - - -
—which have significant increase in cred? risk - - - - - - -
-~ credit impaired - - - . - - R
9,881.04 18,258.80 946.12 - - - 29,085.96
Notes:
i. The average credit period on sale of goods is 30 days to 45 days. No interest is charged on overdue trade
receivables.

i. Expected credlt loss

the Company closely monitors the credit quality of its irade receivables. Accordingly, there is no significant
credit fisk perlaining to the receivable for which the Company has to made provision for the expected credit
loss.
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Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
a. Balances with banks

- on cwrent accounts

b, Cheques on hand
c. Cashonhand

Other bank balances

a. Fixed deposit held as margin money (see note below)

Note:
Margin money deposit are more than 3 month but tess than 12 months. Margin
money is held against letter of credit.

9 Current tax assets

a. Advance income tax {net of provisions}

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
RsJfakh Rs.flakh

261.63 253,86

8,100.00 -
0.33 0.1
8,361,96 259,47
- 404.41
- 404.41
132.78 163.25
132.78 163.25
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10 Equity share capital

Authorised

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting right
tssued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each with voling right

Total

a,  Movemantin share capital
Equity shares
Balance as a! the begnning of the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Equity share

ensting Annual Genersl Meeting,

€. Shares held by Joint Venture Partners

Equity shares
Aditya Infotech Limited
Dixon Technologies {ndia) Limited

Name of shareholder

Equity shares
Aditya Infotech Limited
; Dixon Technotogies (india) Limied

3

Name of promoters

Equity shares
Aditya infotech Limited
Dixon Technologies (kdia) Limited

% Change during the year

Changes in equiy share capital during the cuament year

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

As at
31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

No, of shares RsAakh No, of shares Rs.flakh
2,70,00,000 2,700.00 2.70,00,000 270000
2,70,00,600 ,760.00 2,70,00,000 2,700.00
1.80,00,000 1,903.00 1.90.00,G00 1,900.00
1,90,00,000 1,800.00 1,90,00,000 £,900.00

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
No. of shares Rs.flakh No. of shares RsAAakh
1.90.00,000 1,900,00 1,90.00,000 1,800.00
1,90,00,000 1,900.00 1,80,00,000 1,800.00

As at

31 March, 2024

Ho. of shares

d. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

95,00,000
95,00,00¢

1,80,00,000

As at

31 March, 2024

The Company has one class equity shares having a par vakue of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitfed to one vole per share, The
company deciares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approvat of the shareholders inthe

As at

31 March, 2023
No, of shases

95,00,000
95,00,000

1,50,00,000

As at
31 March, 2023

€. Details of shares held by promoters at the end of the year

No of shares % holding No of shares % holding
95,00,000 50% 95,00,000 50%
95,00,000 50% 95,080,000 50%
As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Mo of shares % holding No of shares % holding
95,00,000 S0% 95,060,000 50%
95,00,000 50% 95,00,000 50%
N Nd

f. There is no shares reserved for issue under oplion, comtract of commitment for the sale of share as disinvestment.

g. There is no right, preference and restrictions atlached to liwe equdy shares
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As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
RsJiakh Rs.fiakh
11 Other equity
a. Retained earnings 5,509.94 4,651.09
b, Other comprehensive income 4.85 9.04
5,594,79 4,660.13
Other equity consist of the following
. Retained eamnings
Opening balance 4,651.09 3,323.67
Add: Profit for the year 858.85 1,897.42
Less: Appropriation
Final dividend on equity shares for the financial year 2021-22 B {570,00)
Closing balance 5,509.94 4,651.09
ii. Other comprehensive income
Opening balance 9.04 6.35
Movement during lhe year {4.19) 2.69
Closing balance 4.85 9,04

Note:

a. Retained earnings:

Retained earnings are profils of the Company earned till date less transferred to other reserves and dividend paid during the year (if

any).

b. Other comprehens'ive income:

Other comprehensive income comprises the balance of remeasurement of relirement benefit plans.




AilL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U32309UP2017PTCO%0189
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

]
-
)

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
42 Borrowings Rs./lakh Rsflakh
1 Long-term borrowings
A. Deferred Hability payment

-Andhra Pradesh Industrial infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (APIIC) 1.004.24 1,004.24

1,004.24 1,004.24

Less : Amount disclosed under “Current maturities of 669.49 334.75
long term borrowings (See nole 12 (b))

334,76 669.49

Notes:

Beferred liability payment

On 16 July 2022, the Company entered info an agreement with APHC {Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation) for a land comprising of 4
sheds, located at Plot No. 65A in YSR, EMC, Kopparthy. The initial lease term of 10 years which can be extended upto 99 years, and the total land
area measures 38,986.63 square meters for an allotment value of Rs. 2021.18 lakh against which the company made an upfront payment of Rs.
1,016.94 fakh and the balance of Re. 1010.59 lakh is to be paid over a period of 3 years starting and last instalment to be paid in financial year 2025-
26 and the Interest is being levied at 7% p.a.of the allotment price. For deferred lability payment no assets have been pledged or morigaged against
the deferred payment allowed by the authority,

Year wise details of repayment is given as befow:

Financlal year Amount of repayment

2023-24 334,75
2024-25 33476
2025-28 334.75

1.004.24

b. No charge or satisfaction of charge is peading for registration with ROC beyond the statutory period.
il Short-term borrowings As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.flakh RsJlakh

A, Current maturity of long-term borrowings

i. 669.49 33478

-Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastricture Corporation Lid, (APHC) {see note 12¢])

B. Unsecured

ii, From related parties (see note below) 1,200.00

1,869.49 334,78

Note:

Unsecured Loan {from related parties)
a. Repayment Term: On or before expiry of 1 year from the date of agreement i.e. 20 November, 2023,
b. Rate of Interest : Fixed rate of 11% p.a. payable at quarterdy rest.

13 Lease liabilities

Non current

i. Leaseliabiies 1,290.36 1,288.14
1,280.36 1,288.14

i, Current
i. Lease liabilities 4.79 2.97
4.79 2,97
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14 Deferred tax {Net) As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March 2023
Rs/Lakh Rsflakh
Deferred tax liabililies 730.15 627.87
730.16 627.87
Deferred tax assets 346.62 330.90
346.62 330,90
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) {383.53) {296.97}

Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilitles dusing the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March 2023

Opening Balance Recognised in Profit or Recognised in other Closing balance
loss comprehensive Income
Rsilakh fisfLakh RsflLakh Rs/Lakh
2023-24
Deferred tax {liabilities) f assets in relation to
Llabilities
Property, plant and equipment {350.11) 113.49 - {463.60)
Lease assets (277.76} (11.21) - (266.55)
{627.87) 102.28 - {730.15)
Assets
Employee benefit obligation 6.70 ' 12,55 1.41 20.66
Lease liabilities 324,20 1.76 - 325.96
330.80 14.31 1.41 346,62
(296.97) 87.97 1.41 {383.53)
2022-23
E Deferred tax {llabilitias} f assets In relation to
| Liabilities
E Property, plant ard equipment {397.28) 4747 - (350,11}
Lease assets {288.97) 11.21 (277.76)
{686.26) 58.38 - {627.87)
Assets
Employse benefit obligation 5.86 1.74 (0.90) 6.70
Lease liabilities 329.41 {(5.21) - 324.20
336,27 {3.47)} {0.90) 330.90

{350,98) {64.91) 10.90) {296.97)
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15 Provisions

1 Non-current

Provision for employee benefits
a. Graluity
b. Compensated absence

B, Current

Pravision for employee benefits
a. Graluity
b. Compensated absence

16 Trade payables

a.  Trade payables (See notes below)

~Total ouistanding dues ta micro and sma¥ enterprises (refer note 30)
+Tolal oulstanding dues lo credtors ather than micro a2nd smak enterprises

a. Trade payables ta related pantes
b.  Trade payabies to others

Notes:

chargeabie on Irade payables,

H.  Agelng for trade payables oulstanding as follows:

As atMarch 31, 2024

i. Total cutstanding dues of micro ¢nterprises and small
enterprises

Todal oulslanding dues of crediers other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

=

. Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enierprises
iv. Dispuled dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Accrued Expenses

As at March 34, 2023

. Total culstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

ii. Tolal outstanding dues of crediors other than micro enlerprises and smafl
enterprises

Fi. Disputed duas of micro enlérprises and small enterprises

tv. Disputed dues of crecitors other than micro
enlerprise s and small enterprises

Accrued Expenses

1¥ Other current financial Rabilities
a. Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment
b, Inleresl accrued bul not due on others
<. Interest actrued and dus on bormewings
d. Marked 1o Market (MTI) on forward contracls
8 Other cwsrent Fabilities

a, Payable towards stalutory dues

Asat As at

3 March, 2024 31 Mareh, 2023
RsAakh Rs.flakh

32.8% 17.21
2.1 2.11
35.58 19,32
0.44 661
1.19 0.711
1.63 132
250,52 80.48
§1,783.82 51.559.85
52,0434 51,540.37
78.43 131.28
51,955.91 5%,809.09
£2,034.34 £1,940.37

i, The average cred? period for purchase of certain goods and sendces are from 60 to 180 days. No interest is

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Hot due 16355 than 1 year £-2 years 2-3 Years Mare than 3 Total
yaars
RsAakh Rs.lakh Rs.flakh Rs.flakh RsAakh
250.52 - - - - 250,52
23.058.49 28.544 32 $1.68 626 - 51,660.72
13,309.01 28,544.32 54.6¢ 6.26 - 51,911,285
123.0%

5203434

Outstanding for the folfowing periods irom due date of payment

Mot due Less than | year 1.2 years 2-3 Years Rore than 3 Total
years
RsJlakh Rs.dlakh Rs.flakh Rs.rtakh Rs.flakh
80.45 . - - . 80.48
15,689.57 36,085.86 4.74 B.92 7.55 51,798 64
15,770.05 36,045,856 4,74 892 7.55 51,817.12
63.25
51,940.37
As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh
80073 655.2%
- 3.88
85.49 -
- 167.46
#46.22 836,59
53.33 28,45

53.33 28,45
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19 Revenue from operations

o

. Sale of products
b. Sale of service
-Job work Charges
c. Other operating revenue (see note i below)

i Other Operaling Revenues
a. Sale of Scrap

A, Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated
based on nature of product or service

a. Revenue from sale of products
Manufactured goods

b. Revenue from sale of services
Job work charges

¢. Other Operating Revenues
Sale of Scrap

Total revenue from operatfons
B. Disaggregated revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenue from contact with
customers for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, The
Company believes that this disaggregation best depicts how the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows are affected by
industry, market and cther economic faclors

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on
geography

a. Domestic

b. Exports

C. Reconciliation of gross revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contract with customers
Add: Cash Discount, Rebates, sates retumn, credit note efc
Net Revenue recognised from Contracts with Customers

20 Other Income

a. Interest earned on security deposits

b. Interesl on fixed deposits

c. Profit on sale of fixed assels

d. Liabilities { provisions ro longer required wiitten back
21 Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases {see note below)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

22 Changes in inventory of work-in-progress and finished goods
Opening - Work in pregress and finished goods

Closing - Work in progress and finished geods

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh

1,26,445.28 98,436.5
69.70 13.79
1017 7.77
1,26,525.15 98,458.07
10.17 7.77

1017 7.77
1,26,445.28 98,436.51
1,26,445.28 98,436.51
69,70 13.79
69,70 13.79

10.17 777

10.17 .97
1,26,525,16 $8,458.07
1.26.445.28 98,436.51
1,26,445.28 98,436.51
1,25,779.43 98,409.95
665.85 26.56
1,26,445,28 98,436.51
0.04 0.04

9.37 27.37

0.23 -

T.i6 2.41

16.77 29.82
16,409.86 17,942.70
§.14,448.95 93,500.82
15,897.66 19,409.86
1,17,961.15 492,033.66
2,596.81 2,420.83
2,942.57 2,586.81
(345.76) {175.98}
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23 Employee benefits expense
a. Salary, wages and bonus
b. Gratuity expenses
c. Contribution to provident and other funds
d. Staff welfare expenses
24 Finance costs

. Interest expense on borrowings

. Interest on lease hiabifities

a

b. Interest on late deposit of statutory dues (see note 'i." below)
c

d

. Interest on others

Note:

i. Interest expense is on late deposit of following statdory dues :

- Excise and Customs

25 Depreciation and amortisation expense

a. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

b. Depreciation of right-of-use asset

26 Other expenses
a. Consumption of stores and spare parts
Job work charges
Service charges
. Power and fuel
Rent
Regpair and maintenance:
- Plant and machinery
- Others
. Insurance
Rates and taxes
Bad debts write off
Communication
Travelling and conveyance
Vehicle running and maintenance
. Bank charges
Watch and ward
Legal and professional
Payments to auditors {see note below)

~seppm

- o

LR RN

Miscellanecus expenses

Note:
i. Payments to auditors {net of GST credit)
(i)  Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees
Other services (group audit}
Out of Pocket expense

Corporate social responsibility expenses (se¢ nole 34)

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.flakh Rs./lakh

1,425,068 724.07
13,71 4.47
58.32 37147
212.28 111.20
1,.709.37 881.91

139,29 -
76.41 14,88
134,76 134.76
- 7.06
350.46 166,70
7641 14.88
76.41 14.88
661.55 316,96
44,55 44.55
706.10 361.51
6.71 1.35
22546 8.51
205.88 312.07
642.75 218.97
5,22 15.10
8.02 3.66
19.79 8.09
47.36 31.00
20.50 374
14.09 4,53
384.22 319.32
17.87 12.32
1.88 4.91
114.79 51.76
3%.10 25.45
9.60 7.54
41.00 30.40
49.94 22,94
1,855.18 1,081,668
6.50 550
1.50 1.50

1.00

0.60 0.54
9.60 7.54
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AIL DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED

27 Income taxes

Current fax
For current year

Deferred tax in respect of the current year

Current tax related to earlier years

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and

loss

Other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassifted to profit or

loss

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit muliplied

by prevailing income tax rate

Profit before tax
Income tax rate
Estimated tax expense

Adjustments recognised in current year in relation {o the current

tax of prior years

Other adjustments (permanent disallowances elc)

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and

loss

28 Earning per share

a. Basic earnings per share
b. Diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share are as follows:

i. The earnings and weighted number of equity shares used in
the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares for the

purposes of earnings per share

Equity shares
face value of per share

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh
27077 629.23
87.97 (54.91)
197.51 -

556,25 574.32

1.41 {0.90)

557.66 573.42

1,415.10 2,471.74

25.17% 25.17%

366.15 622.09
197.51 -

2.59 (48.67)

556.25 573.42

Units

Rs. 4,52 9.99
Rs. 4.52 9.99
Rs. /Lakh 858.85 1,897.42
No's 1,80,00,000 1,90,00,000
Rs. 10.00 10.00
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29 Segment information
The Company's Board of Directors examines the Company's performance on the basis of sales of goods, the Company is engaged in the manufacturing of

security systems and its peripherals spares parl and accessories. These products do not have any different risk and returns and thus the management performed
their review based on one business segment,

36 Amount outstanding of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Enterprises

Based on the responses received from certain suppliers, the Company has certain dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Davelopment Act, 2008 ('MSMED Act'). The disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.lakh Rs.flakh
i}y  The Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at year end
- Principal amount 250.82 80.48

- interest thereon - -

payment
i} lthe ameunt of interest due and payable for the year of delay in making payment {which has been paid but - -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act

|

[ if)  lhe amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, zlong with the amountis of the - -
|

\

‘ iv)  the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid - -
|

v} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when - -
the interest dues above are actually paid to the small investor

31 Commitments and contingencies {to the extent not provided for}

a. The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capilal amounts and not provided for (net of advances) amount te Rs.nil (as at 31 March
2023 : Rs. 19.56 lakhs )

b.  The Company has other commitments, for purchase of goods and services and employee benefits, in normal course of business.

c.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs./lakh
d.  Contingent liabilities
i Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
A.  Disputed tax and otier liabilities for: 3,325.45 -
Goods and Service Tax

B.  Summary of amount paid under protest agains! above: 12,96 -

During the current financial year, the Company received a demand order under the
Goods and Services Tax law, for which a writ petiion has been filed with the
Hen'ble Andhra Pradesh High Court. Based on the assessment by Lhe management
and the apinion of its legal consullants, the Company is of the view that there are
strong chances of a favorable outcome.

e. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any malerial foreseeable losses.

f. Guarantee! surety bond

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.flakh Rs.flakh
Bond given to custom department under AEQ 3,330.00 3,135.00

3,330.00 3,135.00
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32 Employee benefit plans
a.  Defined contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees.
Under the Schemes, the Company Is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable to
these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes. Employer's contribution to provident fund and employee's state insurance
scheme recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year are as under:

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs./lakh
Coniribution to provident fund 53.98 33,24
Contribution to employees state insurance scheme 4.21 3.84
Cthers 0.13 0.09
58.32 3717

b.  Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Employee who have completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary
(last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme of gratuity is unfunded.

In respect of the plan in india, the most recent valuation of the present value of defined benefit obligation were carried as at 31 March, 2024 in which the
present vatue of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost were measured using the project unit credit method.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as folfows:
Valuation as at

31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023

Discount rate (%) 7.23% 7.36%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of 1ALM (2012 - 14) 100% of JALM (2012 - 14)
Retirement Age (Years} 58 58
Withdrawal Rate (%) {Ages)

Up to 30 Years 3% 3%

From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%

Above 44 years 1% i%

Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Service cost: Rs.lakh Rs./iakh
Curfrent service cost 11.95 8.18
Past service cost including curtailment gainsflosses - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 11.95 8.18
Net Interest Cost:
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 1.76 1.29
1.76 1.29

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial gainf(loss) from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial gain/(foss) from change in financial assumptions 0.52 (0.41)
Actuarial gain/(foss) from change in experience adjustment 5.08 (3.18)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive 5.60 (3.59)

income

Total 19.31 5.88
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Notes:
The current service cost and the past service cost including curtailment gainflosses for the year are included in the "Employee benefits expense’ line item in

iii.

the Statement of profit and loss.
The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income,
The Gratuily scheme of the Company is unfunded.

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's cbligation in respect of defined benefit plans is as follows:

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.flakh Rs./takh
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Non-curent 32.85 17.21
Current 0.44 6.61
33.29 23.82
Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs./lakh Rs.flakh

Opening defined benefit obligation 23.82 17.94
Current service cost 11.85 8.18
interest cost i.76 §.29
Remeasurement (gainsilosses:
Actuarial gain/(loss) from change in demographic assumptions - -
Actuariat gain/{loss) from change in financial assumptions 0.52 (0.41)
Actuarial gainf{loss) from change in experience adjustment 5.08 (3.18})
Benefits paid {9.84) -
Closing defined benefit obligation 33.29 23.82

Significant acluarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below have been delermined based on reasonably possible changes if the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting peried,

while holding all other assumptions constant,

A. Sensitivity analysis:

If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 0.50%, the defined benefit obligation would changes as:

As at

31 March, 2023

As at
31 March, 2024
Increase Dacrease
by 0.50% by 0.50%
Rs./lakh Rs.Hakh
Discount rate (2.26) 2.51

Salary growth rate 2.53 {2.29)

increase
by 0.50%

Rs.flakh

(1.36)
1.54

Decrease
by 0.50%

Rs.flakh

1.53
{1.39)

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation by

one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumplions constant.

o (S
ST poud
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33 Financlal Instruments

3 Capital Management

The Company's objective for capilal management is lo maximise shareholder value, saleguard business conlinuity and support the grewth of the Company.

Tae Company delermines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic Investment plans.

Sourcing of capital is done through judicious combination of equity/intemal accruals and borowings, both short ferm and jong termn. Net debt { 1otal borrowings less inveslments and cash arvf cash

equivalants) to equity ratio Is used lo moniar capital.

As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.ffakh Rs.ftakh
Net Debt 2,204.24 1,004.24
Total Equity 741479 6,560.13
Debt equity ratio 0.30 0.15
i,  Categories of financia) Instruments
As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
RsAzkh Rs.akh
A, Financhal assets
#easured at amortised cost
a. Teade receivables 6,021.42 29,085.96
b. Cash and cash equivalenis £.361.86 25947
c.  Other bank balances - 404 .41
Financial assels
- Other financial assets
- NOT-CUITENt 159.26 89.73
- CRETEN 17.777.73 76829
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
a  Marked to Markel {MTM) 229 -
B. Financial 1abilitles
Measured at amortised cost
a.  Borowings
« NOM-CUTENt 33475 669.49
- Current (Including current matunties of kong term borroaings) 1,869.49 334.75
k. Lease labiities
- non-cument 1,280.36 1,288.14
- current 4.79 297
d. Trade payables £2,034,34 51,940.37
a.  Othar financial liabifitiss 896.22 669,13
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL}
- 167,48

a.  Marked to Market (MTM)

Hote:

a, There arg no significant dfference among lhe fair value of finandial assets and habities dassified as measured at cost or measured at fair vatue through profit and toss accordingly ne separate

disclosure of the same have been disclosed.

b. The company has not classified any financial assets as hedge instruments and hence hedge accounting is not applicable,

fit.  Falr value hierarchy

The disclosure of the financial instruments measwed at fair value, the details instrument and valuation technique are as folows:

Particulars

Marked to Market (MTM)

Fair values are categorised into dfferent levels in a fair vatue hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the vafuabion techniques as follows.

As at

31 March, 2024

As at
31 March, 2023

2.29

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markels for identical assets or lisbihties that the entty can access 3t the measurement date;

167.46

- Lavel 2 The fait value of inancial instruments that are nol iraded in an active marke! (for example, Iraded bonds, ever ihe counter denvatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximize the use of observable market data and rely as Ettle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If afl significant inpuls required 1o fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument

is included in level 2,

- Level 3 inpuls are uncbservabla inpuls for the assel of liabdity.

There are no transfers between evel 1, level 2 and level 3 during the year,

For financial assels and Eatibties included in Leve! 3 of (air value hiefarchy have been valued using the cosl approach lo amive at their fair value.




Al DIXON TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CiN - U32309UP2017PTCO%0189
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management objectives

Inihe course of ils business, the Company is exposed primandy 1o fuctuations in foreign curency exchange rates, interest rates, Equidily and credit risk, which may adversely impact the faif value
ef ils financial instruments.

The Company has a risk management poficy which not only cavers the foreign exchange risks Ind also other risks associated with the financial assels and Liabifttes such as interest rate risks and
credi risks. The risk managemenl pokicy is approved by the board of directors. The risk management framework aims to:

- Create a siable business planning environment by reducing the impact of cumency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company's business plan.
- Achieve greater prediclability 1o earnings by delenmining the financial value of the expected eamings in advance,

Market risk

tAarkel risk is the risk of any foss in ffure earrings, in reatisable fair values of in future cash flows that may reswt from a change in the price of a financial Instrument. The value of a financial
instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, lofeign cumency exchange rates, kquidity and other enarket changes. Future specific market movements cannot be normaty
predicted with reasonable accuracy.

tarkel risk is altribtable to 39 marked risk sensitive financiat instruments including deposits, foreign currency payable and loans and borrowings,

Forelgn currency risk management

Tha fluctuation in foreign curency exchanga rates may have potential impact on the Statemenl of Profit and Loss and equity, where any transaction references more than one curency of where
asselsfiabdities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency.

Considering the economic environment in which the Company operales, its operations are subject 10 risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates. Tha risks primarily refate to fluctuations in
LSO and JPY against the functional currensy of the Company.

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is caicutated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous paraliel foreign exchange rates
shit in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 1%.

Foreign cumency risk exposure

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 Warch 2023

Particulars Currency Tetal Hedged Unhedged Total Hedged Unhedged
Financial Liabikties
-Trade Payablas
UsDAskh 55823 517.94 41.29 576.05 544.30 3175
Rsfakh 46,625.21 43182.7 3,442.51 47.261.0% 44 750.63 2610.38
-Other fmancial habifity
JPYAakh 616.35 - 816345 §16.35 - 616.35
Rs Aakh 339.55 - 339.55 380914 - 380.91
Sensitivity Analysis
Particulars Sensttivity Impact on PAT
Analysis Asat As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Increase: Rs.flakh Rs.flakh
UST Sensitvily % 34,43 25810
JPY Sensitivity 1% 3.40 3.81
37.82 2991
Decrease:
LIST Sensitvily 1% {34.43) (26.10)
JPY Sensitivity 1% {3.40) (3.81)
(37.82} (28,91}
Particiéars Sensitivity Impact on equity
Analysis As at As at
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Increase: Rs.Jtakh Rs.flakh
USD Sensitivity 1% 34.43 26.10
JPY Sensitivity 1% 3.40 3.81
3782 29.91
Decrease:
USD Sensitivity 1% {34.43) {2610}
JPY Sensitivity 1% {3.40) {3.81)
{37.82) {29.91)
Note:

Foreign exchange loss amounling to Rs284.28 1akhs(Previous year Rs 1.509 29 lakhs) is inchuded in cost of gooeds sold.
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vii.

{a)

)

vili.

X

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variabls interest rates. Any movemeant in ihe raference rates could have an impact on the Company's cash fiows as
well as cosls. The Company is subject 1o variable inferest rates on some of its interest bearing Babilties. The Compsany’s interest rate exposure is mainly related {o debl cbigations.

As at Asat
Interest rate risk exposure 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.Jtakh Rs.takh

Variable Rate borowings - -
Fixed Rate Borrgwings 2,204.24 1,004.24

2,204.24 1,004.24
Sensitivity analysis
Since there is no vanable rate borrowing, hence there is no impact on PAT and equity for interes rale sensitivity.

Other piice risk

The Company does nol have any financial instrument will Ructuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk}, henca the Company is not
significanily exposed 1o other price risk.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers o the risk of defaull on its abligation by the counterparty leading to financlal loss. The maximum exposure ta the credil risk at he reporting date Is pimarly from trada receivables
Credd risk has atways been managed through manitoring the credil worthiness of customers in the normal course of businass.

The fodowing table gives delads in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customers and top five cuslomers

Revenue fn %

For the year ended For the year ended
Particutars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Revenue from top customer 85% 6%
Revenue from top five customer 100% 100%

Concentration {isk is heavy exposure to a particular customer, Company is in business of manufaclring and safes of al kind of security syslems and its peripherals supply to Aditya Infotech
Limied CAIL") and Dixon Technologies (india) Limited, there may be significant business impact if customer switches to another vendor, howaver as both the parties are joint venture partner in the
Company, in this case, tha Company have relationship wilh customer, Further, in fdure years the Company may add new customers to utibze exira capacity avaiable and to mitigate concentration
risk.

Liquldity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet ifs financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidily and ensure that funds are avatable
for use as pes the requirements.

During the year the Company generated sufficient cash flow operations 1o meet ds inancial obligations as and when they fall due.

Changes in Hability arising from financing activities

Particufars Balance ason 1 Cash Flows Balance as on 34
April, 2023 Receipts Payments March, 2024
Cummen! Borrowings - 1,200.00 - 1,200.00
Nen-current Borrowings 1,004.24 - - 1,004.24
1,004.24 1,200.00 - 2,204.24

The table betow provide detals regarding the contraciual maturities of significant financial iabities as at:
Contractual matuedties of financial liabiities

fess than 1 year 1to 6 year more than b year Total

Rs.Aakhs RsMakhs Rs.Makhs RsAakhs
As at 31 March 2024
Trade payables 52,034.34 - - 52.034.34
Bomowings 1.866.49 33475 - 2,204 24
Other current financia liabdities 896.22 - - B96.22
Lease kabiities 4.79 3329 1.257.97 1,295.15
As at 31 March 2023
Trade payables 51.945.37 - - 51,840.37
Borrowings 334.75 669.49 - 1,004.24
Other current inandal kabdities 838.59 - - 836.59

Lease kabdities 297 2479 1,263.35 1,291,491
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34 Corporate social responsibility expenditure
As per section 135 ¢f the Companies Adl, 2013, a company, mesting the applicabity threshold, needs to spend al least 2% of average ned profit Tor the immediately preceding three financial year on
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR') adlivities. The area for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, prometing education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabitation,
environment sustainabifity, disaster refiel and rural development projects. A £ SR commiitee has been formed by the Company as per the Act,

Year ended Year ended
Particulars . 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.lakh Rs.lakh
A Gross amount required to be spent by the company 41.00 30.40
B. Amount spent by the company
a. Yet to be paid in cash - -
b. Through Bank - Donation to
i.  Parkaf Youth Development Society - 10.00
il. Reimagining Higher Education Foundation 38.16 10.69
i#. SHEOWS (Guru Vishram Vricha Ashram) - an
iv. Connect to Andhra 1.85 -

C. Fhere is no transactions wilh the related parlies as defined under the tnd AS 24 Related Parties disclosures.
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36 Incentives from Andhra Pradesh Government

The Government of Andhra Pradesh vide Grder No. GO(MS} No. 170 dated December 16, 2016 and GO(MS) No. 37 daled March 03, 2017 has announced certain fiscal incentives fo the
cempany for setting up indusiries in the notified Electronics Manufactusing Clusters (EMCs) of the State.

Further, the acliviies of the Company fall under the scheme of Information Technology, Electronics & Communication (Premotions) department 2014-2020, based on the scheme and order
passed the Company is efigible for 100% re-dmbursement of the Stamp Duty, Fransfer Duty and Registralion Fee paid on salef lease deeds on the first lransaction and 50% thereof on the
second transaction, freigh! subsidy, transpor subsidy inlerest subsidy etc.

Movement in the Incentive recoverable from Andhra Pradesh Government is given below:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
Rs.Jlakh Rs.flakh
Cpening Balance 78.29 78.29
Add: Incentive recognise during the year - -
Less: Amount received dusing the year - -
Closing Balance 78.29 78.29

37 Other statutory information

a, buring the current financial year, company has not undertaken any transactions with the cornpanies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 580 of Coempanies
Act, 1956,

. No penalties were imposed by the regulator during the year during the financial year ended 31 March, 2024,

o

There are no such transaction which are nol recorded in the books of account eardier and have been surrendered of disclosed as incame during the current financial year in the tax
assessments under the Income tax acl, 1961

o

d. During the curren! year company has no! advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium} to any other person{s) or entfiies, inciuding foreign entities
(intermediarnes)

. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Cumency during the financial year

The Company do not have any Benrami propesty, where any proceeding has been initialed or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

. The Company have not received any fund from any parson or entity, including foreign enlity (Funding Party} with the understanding {(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Company shai;

e

@

(i} sireclly or indirectly lend or invesl in eiber persons or enities identfied in any manner whalsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{(#) provide any guarantee, security or the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company have not advanced or koaned or invested funds o any other persen(s} or entily(ies}, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding thal the
Intermediary shaB

=

{i) direcily or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{8) provide any guarantee, security or the ke to or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries

. The Company does not have any working capital Em#t, hence not required lo submit quarterly stock stalement with the banks/Minancial insttutions.

The Company is not classified by the lender duzing the period as wilful defaulter.
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescrbed under clause (B7) of section 2 of lhe Act read wilh Companies (Restriction on number of Layers} Rules, 2017 for the
fnancial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Fall

. No proceedings have been inflialed or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactons (Prohibilion) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988} and nudes
made thereunder in the finandial years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
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38 Disclosure of financial ralios
Particulars. Numerator Denominater As at As at Variance % Reason for variance
31 March, 2024 31 March, 2023
a. Cumreniratio Current assels  Curent liabifity ¢.97 160 -3.00%
B Debt equity ratio Total debt Total equity 0.472 G350 34.86% Dus 0 increase in borrowings during
1he curent year
¢.  Debt service coverage ratio Nel operating Total debd service 0.5% 1.05 -47.62%
Income
d.  Retum on equity ratio Net income Tolat equity 0.12 0.29 -58.62% Variance is duse to decling in profit
whereas there is no movement in
e
e. Inventory turaover ratio Coslt of goods Average invenlory 5.76 4.34 32.72% Increase in inventory is to mealt the
sold demand of sales and {hereby cost of
goods sold also increased,
. Trade receivables tumover Net sales Average trade 7. 3.23 123.22% Due to increase in revenue during
ratio receivables tha current year
q. Trade payables turnover ratio  Netprchases  Average rade 220 1.77 24.29% Dueto increase in operations
payabies
h. Net capital lumover ralio Nel sales Working capital (87.79} (1.993.69) -95.60% Dua to increase in working capital
resulting from increased profitabiity
i. MNetprofit ratio Nedt profit Nel sales 0.01 0.02 -50.00%
|- Return on capital employed Earning before  Capital employed 15% 30% -36.67% Due to increass in profilability
interest and tax {increase in operation of the
company)
K Return on investment Earning on Average Not applicable Nol applicable 0.00%
investments investments
Working of the ratios
Basls of ratios Year ended Ratio Year ended Ratio
31 March 2624 31 March 2023
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lzkhs
a. Currentratlo
Curent assets 53.418.53 097 §3,101.07 1.00
LCurrent liability 54,859.80 ’ 53,150.45
b. Debt Equity ratio
Tetal debt (Long tesm debt+ Shodt ferm debt+ 3,469.39 0472 229535 0,350
lease liability)
Total equity (Share capital+ Other equity) 741479 £,580.13
c. Debt service coverage ratio
Net oparang income (Profit alter 1.915.41 0.55 241563 1.05
tax+ Dapreciation+Interest)
Total debt service {Long term debt+Short term 3.499.39 2,295.35
debt+Lease liabdily)
d. Return on equity ratlo
Net operating incoma (PAT) 854 86 0,12 1,900 11 0,29
Tolat equity {Share capital+ Gther equity) 7,414.79 6,560.13
e. laventory tumover ratio
Cosi of goods sold (Tetal sales - Gross profit) 1,17,615.39 5.76 §1,857.68 4.34
Avarage Inventory = (Opening stock + Closing 20,423.48 21,185.11
slock) /2
f.- Trade receivables tumover ratio
Net sales (Tolal sales - Sales return) 1,26,525.16 21 98,458.07 3.23
Average lrade receivables = {Opening deblors 17,563.69 30.513.34
+Closing gebtors) /2
g. Trade payatles tinmover ratio
Total purchases {Net of purchase return) 1.14,448.95 220 93.500.62 1.77
Averaga trade payables = (Opening creditors + 51,887 36 5271539
Closing creditors) { 2
h, Net capital tumover ratio
Net sales (Total sales - Sales retumn) 1,26,525.15 (87.79) 98,458.07 (1,993.89)
Working capital = Current assels « Current {1.441.27} {49.38)
hablities
i, Net profd ratio
Net profit 858.85 0.01 1,697.42 0.02
Net safes {Total sales - Sales relum) 12652515 68.458.07
| Retum on capltal employed
Eamings before interest and tax 1,765.55 18.00% 2652844 30.00%
Capital employed = Tolat assets - Current 9.458.92 8.834.05
ligbilities
k. Retlum on investment Mot applicable Not applicable

ncome on investiments
Average investmenis
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39 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary.

40 Insurance and other claims
In January 2024, a fire occurred at the custom bonded warehouse, resulting in the destruction or damage of inventories valued at ¥17,699.44 lakhs. The company promptly fled claims with
both the warehouse keeper and its marine insurance provider. Management anticipates the full recovery of the amount from the warehouse keeper upon the completion of insurance
procedures and settlement with the insurance company; accordingly, no loss is anticipated.

41 Events after the reporting period
There are no event observed afler the reported period which have an impact on the Company's operation.

42 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Direclors on 14 May, 2024.
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